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September 1990

Review was granted in the following cases during the month of September:

Secretary of Labor, MSHA v. Southern Ohio Coal Company, Docket No. WEVA 89-278.
(Judge Koutras, August 3, 1990)

Wyoming Fuel Company v. Secretary of Labor, MSHA, Docket No. WEST 90-238-R.
(Judge Morris, August 6, 1990)

Secretary of Labor, MSHA v. Lang Brothers, Inc., Docket No. WEVA 90-48.
(Judge Broderick, August 16, 1990)

Secretary of Labor, MSHA v. Randy Coal Company, Docket No. PENN 90-80.
(Default Decision of Chief Judge Merlin on July 18, 1990)

There were no cases filed in which review was denied.
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FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

1730 K STREET NW, 6TH FLOOR
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006

September 10, 1990

SECRETARY OF LABOR,
MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA)

v. : Docket No. PENN 89-222

BETHENERGY MINES, INC.
BEFORE: Backley, Acting Chairman; Doyle and Nelson, Commissioners
ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

In this matter pending on review, arising under the Federal Mine
Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. § 801 et seq. (1988) ('Mine
Act" or "Act"), counsel for the Secretary of Labor has filed a motion
requesting vacation of the citation and its associated civil penalty
assessment and dismissal of the proceeding. BethEnergy Mines, Inc.
("BethEnergy") has filed a response indicating that it has no objection
to the granting of the Secretary's motion. For the following reasons,
we grant the motion.

On March 14, 1989, an inspector of the Department of Labor's Mine
Safety and Health Administration (''MSHA") issued BethEnergy two
citations alleging violations of 30 C.F.R. §§ 75.301 and 75.316 in
connection with a sudden release of methane at the face area of a
longwall section. Section 75.301, in part, requires that a sufficient
volume and velocity of air be ventilated in active working to dilute and
render harmless dangerous or harmful gases, such as methane. 1/ Section

l/ Section 75.301, which repeats the statutory standard at 30 U.S.C.
§ 863(b), provides in pertinent part:

All active workings shall be ventilated by a
current of air containing not less than 19.5 volume
per centum of oxygen, not more than 0.5 volume per\
centum of carbon dioxide, and no harmful quantities
of other noxious or poisonous gases; and the volume
and velocity of the current of air shall be
sufficient to dilute, render harmless, and to carry
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75.316 requires mine operators to adopt ventilation system and methane
and dust control plans approved by the Secretary. The citations alleged
that the current of ventilating air at the face was insufficient to
dilute the methane, in violation of section 75.301, and that BethEnergy
was not complying with certain requirements of its ventilation plan.
BethEnergy contested the citations, the Secretary proposed civil
penalties for the alleged violations, and the matter proceeded to
hearing before Commission Administrative Law Judge Avram Weisberger.

In his decision, the judge vacated the citation alleging a
violation of section 75.316 (12 FMSHRC 975, 981-85 (May 1990)(ALJ)), and
no issue pertaining to that aspect of the judge's decision is before us
on review. With respect to the alleged violation of section 75.301 (n.1
supra), the judge noted BethEnergy's position that, at the time of the
citations, it was meeting or exceeding the minimum air flow required at
the last open crosscut by the second sentence of section 75.301, which
requires an airflow of 9,000 cubic feet a minute ("C.F.M."). BethEnergy
argued that it could not be cited under the first sentence of section
75.301 for failure to provide adequate ventilation to dilute the sudden
release of methane if it were exceeding the airflow set forth in the
second sentence. 12 FMSHRC at 979. The judge rejected this position,
concluding that an airflow meeting or exceeding the 9,000 C.F.M.
requirement does not comply with the first sentence of section 75.301 if
it is nevertheless insufficient to dilute and render harmless dangerous
or harmful gases. 1Id. We granted BethEnergy's subsequent petition for
discretionary review.

After the submission of BethEnergy's brief on review, the
Secretary filed with the Commission her present Motion to Vacate
Citation and to Dismiss Proceeding ("Motion"). 1In this motion, the
Secretary notes that she argued to the judge, and the judge held, that
"Section 75.301 requires that harmful concentrations of methane not
occur in the first instance [and] the second sentence of that section
sets forth the minimum means which in all events must be followed in
seeking to achieve this result...." Motion at 3 (emphasis in original).
However, the Secretary states that, "upon further review,' MSHA has
determined that its position before the judge "is not its preferred
interpretation in the circumstances present in this case, and is not
consistent with its historic and ongoing enforcement position pertaining

away, flammable, explosive, noxious, and harmful
gases, and dust, and smoke and explosive fumes. The
minimum quantity of air reaching the last open
crosscut in any pair or set of developing entries
and the last open crosscut in any pair or set of
rooms shall be 9,000 cubic feet a minute, and the
minimum quantity of air reaching the intake end of a
pillar line shall be 9,000 cubic feet a minute. The
minimum quantity of air in any coal mine reaching
each working face shall be 3,000 cubic feet a
minute. The authorized representative of the
Secretary may require in any coal mine a greater
quantity and velocity of air when he finds it
necessary to protect the health or safety of miners.
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to the liberation of unexpected quantities of methane in a working
place." Motion at 4. The Secretary further notes her "recognition that
the liberation of methane is a natural phenomenon which occurs when coal
is cut from its natural deposit, and that such occurrences are not
readily predictable." 1Id. Based on the foregoing considerations, the
Secretary restates her legal position in this matter as follows:

It is, therefore, the Secretary's position that
compliance with the ventilation quantity
requirements of section 75.301, as implemented
through an operator's approved ventilation plan,
together with the remedial requirements of sections
75.308 and 75.313, [2/] constitute the appropriate
enforcement mechanisms with respect to unexpected
methane liberation in working places (i.e., areas

inby the last open crosscut; see 30 C.F.R. -~
75.2(g)(2)). Thus, a violation of the first
sentence of section 75.301, as cited ... below, does

not occur when methane unexpectedly is encountered
in excessive concentrations in working places.
Applying this interpretation to the facts in this
case, a violation of 30 C.F.R. 75.301 did not occur.

Id. (emphasis in original).

In light of this position, the Secretary now moves for vacation of
the citation and dismissal of the proceeding. After receipt of the
Secretary's motion, the Commission issued an order on August 8, 1990,
directing BethEnergy to file a written response to the motion. On
August 17, 1990, the Commission received BethEnergy's Response to Motion
to Vacate ('"'Response'), indicating that it does not object to vacation
of the citation and dismissal of the proceeding. BethEnergy notes in
its response, however, that its position "does not, under any
circumstances, constitute an admission by BethEnergy of the validity of
the Secretary's assertions set forth in its Motion to Vacate.'" Response
at 2.

As we have held, our "responsibility under the Mine Act is to
ensure that a contested case is terminated, or continued, in accordance
with the Act.'" Youghiogheny & Ohio Coal Co., 7 FMSHRC 200, 203
(February 1985). A motion by the Secretary to vacate a citation or
withdrawal order and to dismiss a proceeding will be granted if
""adequate reasons" to do so are present. Southern Ohio Coal Co.,

10 FMSHRC 1669, 1670 (December 1988) ("SOCCO"), and authorities cited.
Here, the Secretary has disclaimed reliance on the legal position that
she advocated successfully before the judge. Instead, the Secretary
states that, applying her 'preferred interpretation in the circumstances
present in this case,'" it now appears to her that the alleged violation

2/ 30 C.F.R. § 75.308 specifies the remedial actions to be taken when
excess concentrations of methane occur in working places, and

30 C.F.R. § 75.313 provides for the installation of approved methane
monitors on specified kinds of mining equipment.
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of section 75.301 did not occur. As the prosecutor responsible for
enforcement of the Act, the Secretary has concluded that she should seek
dismissal of this proceeding, and that prosecutory determination is
entitled to special weight. SOCCO, 10 FMSHRC at 1670. The operator has
not objected to the granting of the Secretary's motion and will not be
prejudiced by the requested action. No reason otherwise appears on this
record as to why the motion should not be granted.

The Commission expresses no view as to the merits of the judge's
determination that BethEnergy violated section 75.301 or the Secretary's
present interpretation of that standard as applied to the circumstances
involved in this case.

Accordingly, upon consideration of the Secretary's motion and the
operator's response, the Secretary's motion is granted. The citation
and assessed civil penalty are vacated. The Commission's direction for
review is vacated and this proceeding is dismissed. 3/

M

C/c/e/z,wz(/(f//é” %/)/

Richard V. Backley, Acting Chai

J6yce A. Doyle, Commissione?

(é&,&.@v ; Z/‘C/-tsz,éw\,,

L. Clair Nelson, Commissioner

3/ Pursuant to section 113(c) of the Mine Act, 30 U.S.C. § 823(c), we
have designated ourselves a panel of three Commissioners to exercise the
powers of the Commission in this matter.
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FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

1730 K STREET NwW, 6TH FLOOR
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006

September 19, 1990

SECRETARY OF LABOR,
MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA)

v. . : Docket Nos. WEST 88-275-M
: WEST 89-71-M
SANGER ROCK AND SAND

ORDER

BY: Backley, Acting Chairman; Doyle and Nelson, Commissioners

In this civil penalty proceeding arising under the Federal Mine
Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. § 801 et seq. (1988) ('Mine
Act"), Commission Administrative Law Judge John Morris, in a May 17,
1990 decision, vacated two citations issued to Sanger Rock and Sand
("Sanger") and dismissed the proceeding on the ground that the Secretary
of Labor and the Department of Labor's Mine Safety and Health
Administration ("MSHA") had failed to comply with section 552(a)(1)(A)
of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(1)(A) (MAPA™).

On June 11, 1990, the Secretary filed a combined petition for review and
motion for summary reversal of Judge Morris' decision. By order issued
June 25, 1990, the Commission directed review of the Secretary's
petition but stayed briefing pending consideration of the Secretary's
motion for summary reversal. Sanger has filed oppositions to both the
Secretary's petitidn for review and motion for summary reversal.

On August 14, 1987, and April 13, 1988, MSHA Inspector Jaime
Alvarez issued citations to Sanger for violations of 30 C.F.R.
§ 56.12028 and 30 C.F.R. 56.14007, respectively. Sanger contested both
citations. At hearing and in its post-hearing brief, Sanger challenged
the validity of the citations on the ground that the Secretary and MSHA
had failed to comply with section 552(a)(1)(A) of the APA. That
provision provides that each federal agency shall publish in the Federal
Register 'descriptions of its central and field organization and the

established places at which, the employees ... from whom, and the
methods whereby, the public may obtain information, make submittzls or
requests, or obtain decisions." Section 552(a) further provides that

"[e]xcept to the extent that a person had actual and timely notice of
the terms thereof, a person may not in any manner be required to resort
to, or be adversely affected by, a matter required to be published in
the Federal Register and not so published." 5 U.S.C. § 552(a).
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Finding no evidence that the Secretary or MSHA had published the
required information, the judge concluded that Sanger had no notice of
the inspector's duties and delegated authority or MSHA's central and
field organizations. Citing Rowell v. Andrus, 631 F.2d 699 (10th Cir.
1980), United States v. Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) in
United States Currency, 590 F. Supp. 866 (D. Fl. 1984), and Pinkus v.
Reilly, 157 F. Supp. 548 (D.N.J. 1957), the judge determined that the
Secretary's failure to comply with the APA warranted vacation of the
citations as invalidly issued.

On review the Secretary has submitted an entry from the United
States Government Manual 1989/1990 (''Manual'') that refers to MSHA at pp.
406, 409 and 424-25. The Secretary argues that the entry in the Manual
constitutes compliance with section 552(a)(1)(A) of the APA since the
Manual is designated as a special edition of the Federal Register. See
1 C.F.R. 9.1. 1In response, Sanger argues that the Manual entry does not
sufficiently provide the information required by section 552(a)(1)(A) of
the APA.

The manual entry submitted on review was not presented below to
Judge Morris, but the Secretary argues that the Commission can take
judicial notice of the contents of the Federal Register, citing
44 U.S.C. 1507. However, section 113(d)(2)(A)(iii) of the Mine Act,
30 U.S.C. § 823(d)(2)(A)(iii), provides, inter alia, "Except for good
cause shown, no assignment of error by any party shall rely on any
question of fact or law upon which the administrative law judge had not
been afforded an opportunity to pass."

The legal issues presented on review are jurisdictional in nature
and we are mindful of the Secretary's arguments relating to judicial
notice of Federal Register contents. Nevertheless, since the Manual
entry was not submitted to the judge and since the judge is more
appropriately positioned to deal with any factual issues surrounding the
sufficiency of the Manual entry vis-a-vis section 552(a)(1)(A) of the
APA, we conclude that it is preferable to remand the matter to the
judge. The judge shall determine whether the Manual publication
satisfies applicable APA requirements. In his reconsideration of this
matter, we also direct the judge to determine what effect, if any,
section 507 of the Mine Act, 30 U.S.C. § 956, has on the issues
presented. 1/

1/ Section 507 of the Mine Act provides:

Except as otherwise provided in this Act, the
provisions of sections 551-559 and section 701-706
of title 5 of the United States Code shall not apply
to the making of any order, notice, or decision made
pursuant to this Act, or to any proceeding for the
review thereof.

30 U.S.C. § 956.
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Accordingly, we remand the matter to the judge for further

consideration of the issues set forth above.

2/

Richard V.

Backley, Acting Cha1 rman

Jdyce A. Doyle, Commissionef

Y, Clair Nelson, Commissioner

Distribution

Colleen A. Geraghty, Esq.
Office of the Solicitor
U.S. Department of Labor
4015 Wilson Blwvd.
Arlington, Virginia 22203

James F. Baun, President
Sanger Rock & Sand

17125 E. Kings Canyon Road
Sanger, California 93657

Susanne Lewald, Esq.

Office of the Solicitor

U.S. Department of Labor

71 Stevenson Street, Suite 1110
San Francisco, California 94119

Administrative Law Judge John Morris

Federal Mine Safety & Health Review Commission
280 Colonnade Center

1244 Speer Boulevard

Denver, Colorado 80204

2/ Pursuant to section 113(c) of the Mine Act, we have designated
ourselves a panel of three Commissioners to exercise the powers of the

Commission in this matter.
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FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

1730 K STREET Nw, 6TH FLOOR
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006

September 20, 1990

GOLDEN OAK MINING COMPANY, L.P.
v. . : Docket No. KENT 90-185-R

SECRETARY OF LABOR,
MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA)

BEFORE: Backley, Acting Chairman; Doyle and Nelson, Commissioners

ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

In this contest proceeding pending on review, arising under the
Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. § 801 et seq.
(1988) ("Mine Act"), counsel for petitioner Golden Oak Mining Company,
L.P. ("Golden 0Oak") has filed a Motion for Leave to Withdraw Petition
for Discretionary Review. Counsel for the Secretary of Labor has filed
a Response indicating that the Secretary "supports'" Golden Oak's motion.
In the proceeding below, Commission Administrative Law Judge James A.
Broderick concluded that Golden Oak had violated 30 C.F.R. § 75.1712-1
by not providing a surface bathing facility at its underground coal
mine, and that the Department of Labor's Mine Safety and Health
Administration ("MSHA") had not abused its discretion in denying Golden
Oak's request for a waiver of the standard's requirements. 12 FMSHRC
1360 (June 1990)(ALJ). In its present motion, Golden Oak states that
MSHA has now granted it a waiver of the bathing facility requirements
and that its contest is "moot." Upon consideration of Golden Oak's
motion and the Secretary's response, we conclude that adequate reasons
have been presented for dismissal of this proceeding and we grant the
motion. See generally, e.g., Youghiogheny & Ohio Coal Co., 7 FMSHRC
200, 203 (February 1985).
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Accordingly, the Commission's direction for review is vacated and
this proceeding is dismissed. */ '

"Richard V. Backley, Acting Chairm

G DAt

yce A. Doyle, Commissiongy’

Floei Nelion,

L. Clair Nelson, Commissioner _

Distribution

Teresa Taylor, Esqg.

Cook Law Office

118 Hays Street

P.0. Drawer 909

Whitesburg, Kentucky 41858

Dennis D. Clark, Esa.
Office of the Solicitor
U.S. Department of Labor
4015 Wilson Blvd. -
Arlington, Virginia 22203

Administrative Law Judge James A. Broderick
Federal Mine Safety & Health Review Commission
5203 Leesburg Pike, Suite 1000

Falls Church, Virginia 22041

*/ Pursuant to section 113(c) of the Mine Act, 30 U.S.C. § 823(c), we
have designated ourselves as a panel of the three Commissioners to
exercise the powers of the Commission in this matter.
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FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

1730 K STREET NW, 6TH FLOOR
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006

September 27, 1990

SECRETARY OF LABOR,

MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH :
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA) :

v. - : Docket No. PENN 90-80
RANDY COAL COMPANY :

BEFORE: Backley, Acting Chairman; Doyle and Nelson, Commissieners

ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

This civil penalty proceeding arises under the Federal Mine Safety
and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. § 801 et seq. (1988)("Mine Act"). On
July 18, 1990, Commission Chief Administrative Law Judge Paul Merlin
issued an Order of Default finding respondent Randy Coal Company ('"Randy
Coal") in default for its failure to answer the Secretary of Labor's
civil penalty proposal and the judge's order to show cause. The judge
assessed Randy Coal a civil penalty of $98, as proposed by the
Secretary. In an undated letter (postmarked September 20, 1990),
addressed to Judge Merlin, which was received on September 24, 1990,
Randy Coal states that it believed it had been '"released" from the
violation in question. For the reasons explained below, we deem Randy
Coal's submission to be one seeking relief from a final Commission
decision, reopen the proceeding, vacate the judge's default order, and
remand for further proceedings.

On March 26, 1990, the Secretary filed with the Commission a
petition for assessment of civil penalty in this matter, based on a
citation issued by the Department of Labor's Mine Safety and Health
Administration to Randy Coal at its Mine Hill Strip. When no answer to
the penalty proposal was filed with the Commission, Judge Merlin, on May
15, 1990, issued a show cause order directing Randy Coal to file an
answer within 30 days or show good reason for the failure to do so. The
judge entered an Order of Default on July 18, 1990, after Randy Coal
failed to file an answer. On September 24, 1990, the Commission
received a letter from Randy Coal's owner, addressed to Judge Merlin,
stating the owner's belief that Randy Coal had been ''released" from the
violation.
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The judge's jurisdiction over the case terminated when his default
order was issued on July 18, 1990. 29 C.F.R. § 2700.65(c). Under the
Mine Act and the Commission's procedural rules, once a decision has
issued, relief from the decision may be sought by filing with the
Commission a petition for discretionary review within 30 days of the
decision. 30 U.S.C. § 823(d4)(2); 29 C.F.R. § 2700.70(a). Because the
judge's decision has become final by operation of law, 30 U.S.C.

§ 823(d)(1), we can consider the merits of Randy Coal's submission only
if we construe it as a request for relief from a final Commission
decision incorporating a petition for discretionary review. See

29 C.F.R. § 2700.1(b) (applicability of Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
to Commission proceedings); Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(relief from judgment
or order). Under the circumstances presented, we consider Randy Coal's
request in that light. See J.R. Thompson, Inc., 12 FMSHRC 1194, 1195
(June 1990). S

In compliance with the standards set forth in Fed. R. Civ. P.
60(b)(1), the Commission has previously afforded a party relief from
final orders of the Commission where it appears the party's failure to
respond to a judge's order and the party's subsequent default are due to
inadvertance or mistake. See Kelley Trucking Co., 8 FMSHRC 1867, 1868
(December 1986); M.M. Sundt Construction Co., 8 FMSHRC 1269, 1270-71
(September 1986). The owner's letter to the judge contains allegations
that may reflect confusion and misunderstanding as to the nature and
appropriate procedures of this civil penalty proceeding and,
additionally, may reflect problems in the legal representation provided
Randy Coal by its attorney. We conclude that, in fairness, Randy Coal
should be afforded the opportunity to submit its explanations to the
judge, who shall determine whether final relief from default is, in
fact, warranted.
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For the foregoing reasons, we reopen the proceeding, vacate the
judge's default order, and remand this matter for further proceedings.
Randy Coal's attention is directed to the requirements that all further
pleadings that it wishes to submit in this proceeding must be filed with
the Commission and copies of all such documents served on the Secretary
of Labor. 29 C.F.R. §§ 2700.5(b) & .7. 1/

ymy

Richard V. Backley, Acting Chairma

Joyce K. Doyle, Comm1551onen/

L. Cla1r Nelson, Commissioner

1/ Pursuant to section 113(c) of the Mine Act, we have designated

ourselves a panel cf three Commissioners to exercise the powers of the
Commission in this matter.

1762



ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE DECISIONS







FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
THE FEDERAL BUILDING
ROOM 280, 1244 SPEER BOULEVARD
DENVER, CO 80204

SEP 41990

SECRETARY OF LABOR,
MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA),
Petitioner

CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDING

Docket No. WEST 90-110-M
A.C. No. 04-04663-05509
V. Evening Star Mine

BOB SHERMAN, Employed by
BLACKHAWK,

Respondent

DECISION APPROVING SETTLEMENT

Before: Judge Morris

This is a civil penalty proceeding initiated by the
petitioner against respondent, in accordance with the Federal
Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. § 801 et seg. The
civil penalty sought here is for the violation of a mandatory
standard promulgated pursuant to the Act.

Prior to a hearing, the parties filed a motion seeking
approval of a proposed settlement.

Citation 3462951 alleges a violation of 30 C.F.R. § 57,6250.
An original assessment of $250 was proposed. The parties now

seek a decision affirming the citation and assessing a penalty of
$25.

In support of their motion to approve the settlement, the
parties have submitted information relating to the statutory
.criteria required for assessing civil penalties as contained in
30 U.s.C. § 820(i).

I have reviewed the proposed settlement and I find it is
reasonable and in the public interest. It should be approved.

Accordingly, I enter the following:
ORDER

1. Citation 3462951 and the amended civil penalty of §$25
are AFFIRMED.
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2. Respondent is ordered to pay the sum of $25 within 30
days of the date of this decision.

Distribution:

George B, O'Haver, Esqg., Office of the Solicitor, U.S. Depart-

ment of Labor, 71 Stevenson Street, Suite 1110, San Francisco, CA
94105 (Certified Mail)

Mr. Bob Sherman, Blackhawk, 4750 Kelso Creek, Weldon, CA °3283
(Certified Mail)

/ek

1764



FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
THE FEDERAL BUILDING
ROOM 280, 1244 SPEER BOULEVARD
DENVER, CO 80204

SEP § (1540

SECRETARY OF LABOR,
MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA),
ON BEHALF OF
ROBERT BLACK,
Complainant

DISCRIMINATION PROCEEDING

Docket No. CENT 89-165-DM
MD 88-99

Mansfield Pit & Plant
AR

WAYNE PULLIAM, TEXAS SAND
& GRAVEL, CO., INC.,
Respondent

ORDER DISMISSING PROCEEDING

Before: Judge Lasher

The settlement of the parties, providing for back wage
payments in installments, has been consummated by Respondent's
payment of the last installment. Such was confirmed by telephone
by Complainant's counsel on August 21, 1990. The settlement was
approved by my Decision Approving Settlement on April 5, 1990.
Accordingly, the matter having been resolved, this proceeding
is DISMISSED.

el ae T et ff
ichael A. Lasher, Jr.
Administrative Law Judge

Distribution:

Lisa Gray, Esqg., Office of the Solicitor, U.S. Department of
Labor, 4015 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 400, Arlington, VA 22203
(Certified Mail)

Tad Fowler, Esq., Miller & Herring, P.O. Box 2330, Amarillo, TX
79105 (Certified Mail)

Robert Black, 302 S. Brandt, Spearman, TX 7908l (Certified Mail)

/ot
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FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
2 SKYLINE, 10th FLOOR
5203 LEESBURG PIKE
FALLS CHURCH, VIRGINIA 22041

SEP 121330

JOSEPH S. COLAMARTINO,
Complainant

DISCRIMINATION PROCEEDING
V. Docket No. PENN 89-271-D

GATEWAY COAL COMPANY,
Respondent

ee 8o s0 00 o0 oo

DECISION

Appearances: Paul H. Girdany, Esq., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania,
for the Complainant; R. Henry Moore, Esq.,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, for the Respondent.

Before: Judge Maurer
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Complainant filed a complaint with the Commission under
section 105(c) of the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977,
30 U.S.C. § 815(c) [hereinafter referred to as the Act], on
September 1, 1989, alleging that he was assaulted by one of the
Respondent's foremen, Pete Krosunger, because he wanted to rib
pin an area that the foreman did not want pinned. The foreman,
Krosunger, on the other hand, admits hitting Complainant, but
contends that the incident occurred because of his pent-up
frustration with supervising Colamartino. The Respondent
(Gateway) maintains that the only adverse action taken against
Complainant was taken by Mr. Krosunger and that they for their
part, not only did not sanction his actions, but in fact,
suspended him for 60 days without pay as a result.

Pursuant to notice, this case was heard in Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania, on March 19 and 20, 1990. Both parties have filed
post-hearing proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law
which I have considered along with the entire record in making
this decision.

STIPULATIONS

The parties stipulated to the following at the hearing,
which I accepted (Tr. 5-6):

1. The administrative law judge has jurisdiction in this
proceeding.
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2. The Gateway Coal Company operates coal mine facilities,
and therefore, is an operator as defined under section 3(d) of
the Act.

3. Complainant Joseph Colamartino has had a job
classification of roof bolter, which at the time, under the
collective bargaining agreement in effect between the parties,
paid $16.92 per hour or $122.73 per day.

4, On May 17, 1989, he was assigned certain roof bolting
duties with another employee named Sylvester Richards.

5. His supervisor that day was Gerald A. (Pete) Krosunger.

6. An altercation occurred on that day from which
Mr. Colamartino suffered injuries. _

7. Mr. Colamartino was absent from work from May 17 to
August 14, 1989.

8. Complainant, Mr. Colamartino, received workers'
compensation payments during this period of time in the amount of
$399 per week.

9. Aside from the actual physical assault, there was no
formal disciplinary action taken against Mr. Colamartino; i.e.,
adverse action.

10. From on or about June 16, 1989 until July 17, 1989, the
bargaining unit employees at the Gateway Coal Company, did not
report for work.

11. Pete Krosunger was suspended without pay from May 18,
1989 until July 15, 1989.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Complainant first started to work for Gateway Coal
Company (Gateway) in January of 1977. He worked until he got
laid off in 1985 and was then recalled in 1988. He worked as a
roof bolter for Pete Krosunger from May of 1988 until the
incident involved herein, which occurred on May 17, 1989.

2. During this year-long period, Krosunger had some
problems supervising Colamartino, including several incidents of
insubordination, which are documented in two notebooks received
into evidence as Respondent's Exhibit Nos. 7 and 8, and
summarized in Respondent's Exhibit No. 6. More specifically,
there are several instances documented by Krosunger where
Colamartino complained about or refused to perform rib-pinning.
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3. For example, on the very day of the incident, May 17,
1989, at the beginning of the shift, when told by Krosunger that
he would have to rib-pin the No. 1 heading, Colamartino replied
to the effect: "Why do we have to do it, nobody else on the
other shifts is doing it?" He further testified at the hearing,
by way of explanation, that he wanted to know why, if rib-pinning
that entry was so important, the other two shifts were not

helping with the task. He did not appreciate it that they had
not done their share.

4. At the beginning of their shift on May 17, 1989,
Krosunger had assigned Colamartino and his bolting partner,
Richards, to rib-pin an area in the No. 1 entry. Two hours
later, when Krosunger checked on their progress, he found that
they had only installed about twenty rib pins despite the fact
that it only takes 3 to 4 minutes to install each pin. Krosunger
was upset about this and Colamartino knew it.

5. At this point in time, Colamartino informed Krosunger
that they would not pin those areas of the rib where loose coal
and sloughage had either fallen down or been taken down by their
scaling the rib. Complainant opined that they could not safely
install rib pins in that area because they could not secure safe
footing. Mr. Virgili, a safety committeeman who inspected the
area shortly after the incident giving rise to this case
occurred, agrees that it would have been unsafe to install rib
pins in that area. Krosunger believed that Colamartino had

purposely scaled the rib in order to have some reason not to rib-
pin it.

6. After some repartee between the two as to whether or not
Colamartino did or did not want to rib-pin, Krosunger ordered
Complainant and Richards to go to the No. 2 entry and bolt the
roof where the continuous miner pulled out.

7. Krosunger specifically told Complainant and Richards not
to rib pin in this one area of the No. 2 heading where the miner
was going to begin a crosscut, perhaps on that same shift.

8. When Krosunger returned to the face of the No. 2 heading
sometime later, he found Colamartino preparing to rib-pin. He
testified at Tr. 279-281 and which testimony I find credible and
do credit it here:

I went up on Lester's side, I said, "What
are you doing, Lester?"

* * * *

Q. Lester is Mr. Richards?

A. Sylvester Richards, right.
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"I told you, don't rib pin this." He
went like this (indicating).
Q. He gestured with his hand?

A. Right.

%* * * *

Q. Who was he motioning toward?
A

. Joe, his buddy. [Colamartino]

* * * *

Q. What did you do then?

A. I went over and asked Joe, "Why are you
rib pinning? I told you don't rib pin this.
We are going to cut them out anyway."

Q. What did he say?

A. His response was, "The company wants
these places rib pinned, they are going to
get them rib pinned."

Q. What happened at that point?

A. He started to stretch out boards.

I said, "Joe, don't rib pin this. We are
going to cut them out anyway." This is what
I said to him again, following him around the
machine, because he is putting those boards
down in the area they would be installed. I
was picking them up and putting them back on.

Q. Do you recall how many times you went
around the bolter like this?

A. I would say twice.

Q. And he was putting them down and you were
picking them up?

A. Right.

Q. What happened after you did that?

A. I asked him, "What are you doing, Joe? I
told you don't rib pin." « « « [AInd he

grabbed that drill and started walking to the
face.
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At that point Krosunger grabbed the drill to pull it away
from him. Colamartino resisted and Krosunger began hitting him
until Richards yelled for him to stop.

9. The purpose of rib-pinning in this mine is to prevent
the ribs from spalling and depositing accumulations of
combustible materials along the ribs, however, generally the
areas which are to be cut out to create crosscuts are not pinned.
Installation of rib pins before the crosscut is made would
require the continuous mining machine to cut out those pins which
could present a hazard to the miner operator, and/or damage the
equipment.

10. There is no requirement for the entire mine to be rib-
pinned, and it is not unusual to have areas of unpinned rib in
this mine in addition to those areas where a crosscut is planned.

11. After the incident occurred, Mr. Rodavich, the mine
superintendent, went underground to inspect the area,
specifically the condition of the ribs in the No. 2 entry. They
looked adequate to him. They looked like the rest of the section
looked. He did not see any hazards present that would have
mandated rib-pinning.

12. Neither Complainant nor Krosunger knew for sure when
the turnout would be made from the No. 2 entry and thus
Complainant's position is that his safety concern was for other
miners who would have to travel through the No. 2 entry for some
undetermined period of time and would therefore be subject to
injury from possible rib falls if no rib pins were installed in
this area for their protection. I find as a fact that this
alleged safety concern for others was not in fact the
Complainant's motivation for his behavior prior to the incident
at bar on May 17, 1989.

13. The Complainant never raised a safety issue with
Krosunger on behalf of himself or others nor sought to exercise
his individual safety rights under the union contract with regard
to rib-pinning this turnout area. He likewise did not seek to
inform the safety committeeman, Mr. Virgili, who was on the
section, of his concern over this area's ribs.

DISCUSSION, FURTHER FINDINGS, AND CONCLUSTONS

The general principles governing analysis of discrimination
cases under the Mine Act are settled. 1In order to establish a
prima facie case of discrimination under section 105(c) of the
Act, a complaining miner bears the burden of production and proof
in establishing that (1) he engaged in protected activity and (2)
the adverse action complained of was motivated in any part by

that protected activity. Secretary on behalf of Pasula v.
Consolidation Coal Co., 2 FMSHRC 2786, 2797-2800 (October 1980),
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rev'd on other grounds sub nom. Consolidation Coal Co. v.
Marshall, 663 F.2d 1211 (3rd Cir. 1981); Secretary on behalf of
Robinette v. United Castle Coal Co., 3 FMSHRC 817-18 (April
1981). The operator may rebut the prima facie case by showing
either that no protected activity occurred or that the adverse
action was not motivated in any part by protected activity. If
an operator cannot rebut the prima facie case in this manner, it
nevertheless may defend affirmatively by proving that it also was
motivated by the miner's unprotected activity and would have
taken the adverse action in any event for the unprotected
activity alone. Pasula, supra; Robinette, supra. See also,
e.g., Eastern Assoc. Coal Corp. v. FMSHRC, 813 F.2d 639, 642 (4th
Cir. 1987); Donovan v. Stafford Construction Co., 732 F.2d 954,
958-59 (D.C. Cir. 1984); Boich v. FMSHRC, 719 F.2d 194, 195-96
(6th Cir. 1983) (specifically. approving the Commission's Pasula-
Robinette test). Cf. NLRB v. Transportation Management Corp.,
462 U.S. 393, 397-413 (1983) (approving nearly identical test
under National Labor Relations Act).

Treating this as a work refusal case, it is also well
settled that a miner has the right under section 105(c) of the
Act to refuse to work if he has a good faith, reasonable belief
that the work involves a hazardous condition. Pasula, supra, 2
FMSHRC at 2789-96; Robinette, supra, 3 FMSHRC at 807-12; Miller
v. FMSHRC, 687 F.2d 194 (7th Cir. 1982). Additionally, where
reasonably possible, a miner refusing work ordinarily must
communicate or attempt to communicate to some representative of
the operator his belief that a hazardous condition exists.
Secretary on behalf of Dunmire & Estle v. Northern Coal Co., 4
FMSHRC 126, 133-135 (February 1982); Dillard Smith v. Reco, Inc.
9 FMSHRC 992 (June 1987); Miller v. Consolidation Coal Company,
687 F.2d 194, 195-97 (7th Cir. 1982) (approving Dunmire & Estle
communication requirement).

Although by insisting on pinning the ribs in the No. 2 entry
Colamartino was seeking to perform work, rather than refusing to
perform work, a framework for analyzing this incident based upon
a refusal to perform hazardous work is useful here. 1In essence,
Colamartino was refusing to comply with a work order, in that he
was directed several times by Krosunger not to rib pin the No. 2
entry.

Complainant's actions herein could be held to be protected
activity even though he did not feel personally endangered. It
would be sufficient if he were acting to confront a threat to the
health or safety of other miners. Secretary on behalf of Cameron
v. Consolidation Coal Co., 7 FMSHRC 319 (1985), aff'd. sub nom.
Consolidation Coal Co. v. FMSHRC, 795 F.2d 364 (4th Cir. 1986).

If the Complainant in this case engaged in protected
activity at all, it was on behalf of other miners, not himself.
Complainant did not feel personally endangered. Rather, he
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allegedly was -concerned that if he did not rib-pin the area of
the proposed turnout in the No. 2 entry, that it would remain
unpinned for an unspecified period until it was cut-out. In the
interim, others would be exposed to the dangers associated with
rib falls or rolls.

~ The Complainant herein bears the burden of proof that such a
hazard existed or at the very least that he had a good faith,
reasonable belief in its existence. I do not believe he has
carried that burden.. I do not believe Colamartino had any
safety-related concern whatsoever in the No. 2 entry. He only
wanted to rib-pin the one exact area that his foreman
specifically instructed him not to pin. There were many other
areas that were unpinned, but he did not care to pin them, in
fact, resisted rib-pinning in general. He only wanted to pin the
one area where Krosunger told him repeatedly there was going to
be a turn-out made. I find that his action in insisting on
attempting to rib-pin the area in question in the No. 2 entry did
not rise to the level of protected activity.

It is fairly obvious to me, or at least it is my decided
impression from the totality of the record in this case, that
Colamartino's purpose was to aggravate his supervisor, Krosunger.
Historically, he complained about having to rib-pin. Earlier on
that same shift, he refused to rib-pin an area he had been
directed to, after he scaled down material in front of the rib.
If insecure footing truly was the problem keeping him from the
assigned rib-pinning, he could have shoveled the sloughage up and
continued to pin the ribs that Krosunger wanted him to pin in the
No. 1 entry.

It also appears to me from the record herein, that the ribs
in the area he wanted to pin were no different than the ribs in
the rest of the section. There was no particular hazard there.
Additionally, there appears to be a legitimate reason why
Krosunger did not want them pinned, i.e., they would only have to
be cut out when the turnout was made. Furthermore, turnouts were
not routinely rib-pinned and it was the usual practice for
foremen to instruct the men not to pin those areas. Colamartino
was apparently aware of this because on prior occasions he had
asked about the locations of turnouts to avoid rib-pinning.

From Krosunger's point of view, it is apparent to me that he
acted out of sheer personal animus towards Colamartino. There is
no basis in this record to find that he struck the Complainant
because he was reacting to any safety concerns that Colamartino
may have had. First of all, Colamartino did not express any
safety-related concerns to him; and in any event it is clear to
me that Krosunger's actions were motivated by unprotected
activity alone. Not only unprotected activity (shirking,
insubordination, "mistakes", slowness to perform, etc.) that
occurred on that same shift, but this same type of thing had been
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troubling Krosunger for some time already before May 17, 1989. I
believe he was severely provoked by all of this and unfortunately
the assault on Mr. Colamartino of May 17, 1989, resulted.

Krosunger was thereupon suspended for sixty days without pay
by the operator-respondent. Since Krosunger's personal assault
on Colamartino is the only "adverse action" complained of in this
case, even if I find tha